
 

 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

December 13, 2017 8AM 

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

3. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FROM SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 

4. PUBLIC REMARKS 

5. NEW BUSINESS  

A.  BRA rules and procedures 

B. Brownfield application  

C. BRA Officers 

  

6. OLD BUSINESS 

 A. Environmental Consultant selection 

 

7. PUBLIC REMARKS 

8. ADJOURNMENT  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI  48864 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING MINUTES 

 

September 20, 2017 

5000 Okemos Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198 

Central Fire Station, 8:00 A.M. 

 

PRESENT: Chair Chris Buck, Vice-Chair John Scott-Craig, Ned Jackson, Jeff Theuer, John 

Matuszak   

ABSENT: Township Manager Frank Walsh 

STAFF: Director of Community Planning & Development Mark Kieselbach, Senior Planner 

Peter Menser 

OTHER: None 

 

1. Call meeting to order 

Chair Buck called the regular meeting to order at 7:57 A.M.   

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

 

Motion by Director Matuszak to remove item 6B from the agenda due to time constraints. 

Supported by Vice-Chair Scott-Craig. 

Director Matuszak moved to approve the agenda as amended. 

Supported by Director Jackson. 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.  

 

3. Approval of Minutes  

 

Director Scott-Craig moved to approve the meeting minutes of August 16, 2017 as written. 

Seconded by Director Jackson. 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously. 

  

4. Public Remarks – None  

 

5. Environmental Consultant presentations 

 

 A. TriTerra 

 B. SME 

 C. Fishbeck, Thomson, Carr, & Huber (FTCH) 

 

The BRA Board heard presentations from, and asked questions of, each consultant that 

submitted proposals to be the Township’s brownfield consultant. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT 



Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Organizational Meeting Minutes -DRAFT- 

September 20, 2017 

Page 2 

 

6. New Business 

 

A. Environmental Consultant selection  

 

The BRA Board discussed the presentations from the three brownfield consultants.  

BRA Board discussion included the following: 

 

• Recap of presentations and initial impressions to each consultant 

• The proposed fee structures included in the submitted proposals and how they 

apply 

• Costs for training and development of policies/procedures would not be 

covered by brownfield application fee from developer 

• Preferences of each BRA Board member with regards to hiring a consultant 

• Shared concerns and potential benefits of each consultant 

• Relationship between consultant and BRA Board, role of consultant in review of 

brownfield plan request 

 

The decision was made for Chair Buck to follow up with contacts at the Lansing Area 

Economic Partnership (LEAP) to gain additional insight into two of the three 

consultants and follow up with the BRA Board. 

 

7. Old Business 

 

A. Draft bylaws – Chair Buck noted the BRA Bylaws were approved by the Township 

Board at its meeting on September 19, 2017. 

 

8. Public Remarks – None  

 

9. Adjournment 

 Chair Buck adjourned the meeting at 10:07 a.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

Peter Menser  

Senior Planner 

 



 

 

To:  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA)  

 

From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

Date:  December 7, 2017 

 

Re: Policies and procedures 

 

 

To facilitate the activities of the BRA most communities develop a policies and procedures 

document that provides a framework for the consideration of brownfield projects and outlines the 

specific policies of the BRA Board.  The following is a review of some of the different components 

found in policies and procedures documents.   

 

Background/Purpose 

 

This section talks about where the BRA Board derives its authority, the purpose of the BRA, and a 

brief history of its inception. 

 

Eligibility 

 

The Eligibility section outlines the minimum criteria a project must meet to be eligible for 

brownfield consideration.  The criteria are directly related to the definition of “eligible property” 

as established by the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act.  Activities eligible for brownfield 

tax capture in Meridian Township include environmental clean-up, environmental assessments, 

reporting/compliance activities, demolition, and asbestos/lead abatement.  Demolition and 

asbestos/lead abatement may require Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) or 

Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) approvals.    

 

General qualifications for funding 

 

Generally this section outlines the various items that need to be met to qualify for tax capture.  

These include project and developer viability, demonstration of financial need, project eligibility 

under state law, and consistency of the project with local ordinances such as zoning and the 

Master Plan, among others.  The qualifications identified in this section vary widely by 

municipality. 

 

Project evaluation criteria 

 

The City of Grand Rapids and some other communities around the state have adopted criteria used 

to evaluate brownfield projects that relate to the nature and characteristics of the proposed 

development.  Development projects meeting the criteria are more likely to be selected for funding 

than those that do not.  These include such items as LEED Certification, inclusion of affordable 

housing, job creation, compliance with architectural standards, consideration for public transit, 

etc.  There is no requirement to include project evaluation criteria as a component brownfield 

project review. 



 

BRA Policies and Procedures 

December 13, 2017 BRA meeting 

Page 2 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Eligibility for interest 

 

This section outlines BRA policy on the collection of interest by the developer for money spent on 

eligible activities.  Some communities identify criteria that must be met in order to collect interest.  

The total amount of interest and the interest rate are negotiable with the developer but in some 

instances a community will establish an amount or rate that cannot be exceeded.   

 

Administrative cost capture 

 

The BRA may capture costs for reimbursement of administrative expenses related to operating the 

BRA, which could include consultant fees the community incurs for the review of BRA requests, 

among other activities.  This section establishes the BRA Board policy on the capture of 

administrative costs.   Some communities set a maximum or minimum amount that will be 

captured for administrative costs. 

 

Local Brownfield Revolving Fund 

 

The state act allows a BRA to establish a local brownfield revolving fund (LBRF).  This is typically a 

portion of the TIF that can be collected either during the TIF reimbursement period or for a period 

of time after the developer has been paid back from TIF.  The funds collected into a LBRF can be 

used for eligible activities on other properties in the community, such as environmental 

assessments, and are typically dispersed in the form of a grant or loan.  If a LBRF is established 

then a separate policy document may be needed to describe the LBRF program policies in detail 

and identify review criteria that will be used to award grants and loans.  A BRA is not obligated to 

establish a LBRF.  

 

Review Process 

 

The policy and procedures document will include an overview of the brownfield process, which 

will detail the different steps required and the related staff and decision maker for each step.  It is 

strongly recommended that the BRA Board require a pre-application meeting and submission of a 

draft brownfield plan for initial review by staff and the BRA.  Overall the process will include plan 

review, discussions with MEDQ staff, a public hearing, project review and recommendation by the 

BRA, and a final decision by the Township Board. 

 

Attachment 

1. Examples of policy documents and applications 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\BRA\Policies and Procedures\Policies.bra1.docx 
 

























 

To:  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 

 

From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

Date:  December 5, 2017 

 

Re: Election of Officers 

 

 

The Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act (Act 381 of 1996) requires members of a 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority to elect one from among their membership as chairperson 

and another as vice-chairperson.  At the BRA meeting on August 16, 2017 Chris Buck was selected 

to serve as chairperson of the BRA Board.  Mr. Buck has since resigned as BRA chairperson due to 

being hired as the Township’s Economic Development Director, so the position of chairperson is 

now vacant.   John Scott-Craig, the Vice-Chair of the Planning Commission, serves as the Vice-Chair 

of the BRA Board. 

 

Per the BRA bylaws, all terms of office are for one year and no member of the BRA can hold the 

same office for more than three successive terms.  While not detailed in the State Act, the 

responsibilities of the chair and vice-chair are generally as follows: 

 

Chair: The chairperson has the general powers and duties of supervision and management of the 

BRA.  He or she runs the meetings of the BRA Board and represents the Board in most affairs both 

within and outside of the Township.  He or she is an ex-officio member of all committees and may 

appoint members to committees and select the chairperson of any committees.  

 

Vice-Chair: The vice-chair acts in the capacity of the chair in the chair’s absence.  In the event the 

office of the chair becomes vacant, the vice-chair shall succeed to this office for the unexpired term. 

 

At the meeting on December 13, 2017 staff will request nominations for the position of BRA 

chairperson.  Once nominations are made the BRA Board will vote on the position.  The board 

member receiving the most votes will serve as chairperson.  The elected officer will begin serving 

immediately and will remain in that position for one (1) year. 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\BRA\Packets\2017\12-13-17\election of officers.docx 


	December 13, 2017 Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Meeting Agenda
	September 20, 2017 Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Draft Meeting Minutes
	Policies.bra1
	WCBRA Program Policies and Procedures
	WCBRA Project Application Form
	election of officers

